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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Board and Management 
Prince William County Public Schools 
Manassas, Virginia 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Prince William County Public Schools (“PWCS”), a component unit of the 
County of Prince William, Virginia as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the 
PWCS’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the PWCS’ management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Student Activity Fund, which represents 55% of 
the aggregate remaining fund information. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report 
has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Student Activity Fund, 
is based on the report of the other auditors.  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards and Commissions, issued by the 
Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  Those standards and specifications require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of  
PWCS, as of June 30, 2007, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, 
thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 2007 on 
our consideration of the School Board’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report 
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered 
in assessing the results of our audit. 
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The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Schedules of Funding Progress and Contributions for a defined 
benefit pension plan on pages 15 through 27 and page 56, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  We have 
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.  However, we did not audit this 
information and express no opinion on it. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the basic financial statements of PWCS.  The combining and individual fund financial statement schedules listed in 
the table of contents as supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
The accompanying schedules and tables, listed in the table of contents as the “Introductory Section” and “Statistical 
Section”, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  This information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on such data. 
 

 
 
Greensboro, North Carolina 
December 20, 2007 
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Prince William County Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 
 
 
This section of the Prince William County Public Schools’ (PWCS) annual financial report presents our discussion 
and analysis of the district’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 (FY 2007). Please 
read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the school divisions’ financial 
statements, which immediately follow this section. (All values in MD&A expressed in thousands). 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• General revenues accounted for $775,098 or 87% of all revenues. Program specific revenues in 
the form of charges for services, grants, and contributions accounted for $114,622 or 13% of total 
revenues of $889,720.  

 

• The school division had $797,465 in expenses related to governmental activities of which 
$114,622 was offset by program specific charges, grants, or contributions. General revenues, 
primarily County and Commonwealth (State) of Virginia, were adequate to fund the remaining 
expenses. 

 

• Net assets increased by $92,255 to a total of $979,753. The value of net assets reflects the 
financial health of the school division and includes certain assets procured with debt. The school 
division is a component unit of and is fiscally dependent on Prince William County (PWC). As 
such, all debt related to school division assets is shown on the County’s Statement of Net Assets. 

 

• On September 30, 2006 (FY 2007) student membership was 70,723, an increase of 2,498 
students, or 3.6% greater than the FY 2006 Approved budget. The student membership was also 
247 students more than projected for FY 2007.   

 

• In fiscal year 2007 the school division received an additional $2,765 in County revenue for PWCS’ 
share of FY 2006 revenues that exceeded the original FY 2006 revenue projections. These funds 
were used to support the local cost of the additional students and to fund capital projects.  

 

• Rosa Parks Elementary, Buckland Mills Elementary and Potomac Middle Schools were opened in 
September 2006.   

  
    
 

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report  
 

This annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of 
statements that present different views of the school division.  
 

• The first two statements are division-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and 
long-term information about the school division’s overall financial status.  

 

• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the 
division, reporting the division’s operations in more detail than the division-wide statements.  

 

• The governmental funds statements describe how basic services such as regular and special 
education were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.  

 

• Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the 
activities that the division operates like businesses.  

 

• Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the 
division acts solely as a trustee or agent.  

 
 

The basic financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the 
statements and provide more detailed data.  
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Prince William County Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 
 
 

Organization of Prince William County Public Schools Annual Financial Report 
 
 

 

 Summary Detail 
 

 

Major Features of the Division-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 
Division-wide 
Statements 

Fund Financial Statements 

 Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds 

Scope  Entire school division 
(excludes fiduciary 
funds)  

The activities of the school 
division that are not proprietary 
or fiduciary, such as special 
education and building 
maintenance  

Activities the school division 
operates similar to private 
businesses: self-insurance,  
health insurance, and the 
warehouse 

Instances in which the school 
division administers resources 
on behalf of someone else, 
such as scholarship programs 
and student activities monies  

Required financial 
statements  

•Statement of net 
assets  
•Statement of activities  

•Balance sheet  
•Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in 
fund balances  

•Statement of fund net assets  
• Statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in 
fund net assets  
•Statement of cash flows  

•Statement of fiduciary net 
assets  
•Statement of changes in 
fiduciary net assets  

Accounting Basis 
and measurement 
focus  

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources 
focus  

Modified accrual accounting and 
current financial focus  

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus  

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus  

Type of 
asset/liability 
information  

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and 
capital, short-term and 
long-term  

Generally assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that come 
due during the year or soon 
thereafter; no capital assets or 
long-term liabilities included  

All assets and liabilities, both 
financial and capital, and 
short-term and long-term  

All assets and liabilities, both 
short-term and long-term; 
funds do not currently contain 
capital assets, although they 
can  

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information  

All revenues and 
expenses during year, 
regardless of when 
cash is received or paid  

Revenues for which cash is 
received during or soon after the 
end of the year; expenditures 
when goods or services have 
been received and the related 
liability is due and payable  

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless of 
when cash is received or paid  

All additions and deductions 
during the year, regardless of 
when cash is received or paid  
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Prince William County Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 
 
 
Division-wide Statements  
 
The division-wide statements report information about Prince William County Public Schools as a whole using 
accounting methods similar to those used in private-sector companies. While this document contains a number of 
funds used by PWCS to provide programs and activities, the view of PWCS, as a whole, looks at all financial 
transactions and asks the question, “How did we do financially during FY 2007?” The Statement of Net Assets 
and the Statement of Activities answer this question. These statements report all of the assets and liabilities using 
the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting reflects all of the current year’s revenues and 
expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.  
 
The two division-wide statements report PWCS’ net assets and how they have changed. Net assets – the 
difference between PWCS’ assets and liabilities – are one way to measure the division’s financial health or 
position.  
 

• Over time increases or decreases in the division’s net assets are an indicator of whether its 
financial position is improving or declining, respectively.  

 
• To assess the overall health of PWCS, additional non-financial factors may also be relevant, such 

as changes in the County tax base, the condition of school buildings and other facilities, required 
educational programs, and other factors.  

 
In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, PWCS reports amounts related to governmental-
type activities and its three internal service funds. PWCS’ governmental-type activities include: regular instruction, 
special instruction, other instruction, instructional leadership, general administration, student services, 
curricular/staff development, pupil transportation, operations, utilities, maintenance, central business services, 
reimbursement to the County for debt service, food service, and community service operations. 
 
Fund Financial Statements  
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about PWCS’ most significant or “major” funds. 
Funds are accounting devices that PWCS uses to help keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for 
particular purposes:  
 
PWCS has three types of funds:  
 

• Governmental Funds: Most of PWCS’ activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus 
on how much money flows in and out of those funds and the balances remaining at year-end 
available for spending in future periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method 
called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can 
be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term 
view of PWCS’ general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental 
fund information helps one determine whether there are more or fewer resources that can be 
spent in the near future to finance educational programs. Because the governmental funds 
information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the division-wide statements, 
additional information has been added in the form of reconciliations between the total fund 
balances of the governmental funds and the total net assets of the division-wide activities. An 
additional reconciliation is added to explain the differences between the net change in fund 
balance and the change in net assets of the school division. 

 
• Proprietary Funds: Proprietary funds are reported on a full accrual basis and economic resources 

focus. PWCS uses internal service funds (one kind of proprietary fund) to report activities that 
provide supplies and services for its other programs and activities. PWCS has three internal 
service funds: the Self-Insurance fund, the Health Insurance fund, and the Warehouse fund. 
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Prince William County Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 
 
 

• Fiduciary Funds: PWCS is a trustee or fiduciary for the Northern Virginia Regional Special 
Education Fund (Regional School Fund). All of the fiduciary activities are reported in a separate 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets. These 
activities are excluded from PWCS’ division-wide statements because PWCS cannot use these 
assets to finance its operation. The student activity monies are also accounted for in an agency 
fund.  

 
 
Financial Analysis of PWCS as a Whole  
 
Net Assets 

 
The condensed statement of net 
assets describes the financial 
position of PWCS on June 30, 
2007. The largest portion of 
PWCS net assets reflects its 
investment in capital assets 
(buildings, land, equipment, and 
construction-in-progress). Capital 
assets account for 79.4% of the 
total net assets and have 
increased by $59,228 since June 
30, 2006. This increase is 
primarily the result of continued 
construction necessary to house 
the continuing growth in the 
student population. These capital 
assets are not net of related debt 
because, as a component unit 
(school division) in Virginia, 
PWCS does not have the authority 
to issue debt. All debt is issued by 
PWC and, therefore, shown as a 
liability on their Statement of Net 
Assets. In years where there are substantial additions to capital assets that are funded through the issuance of 
debt, the school division will have substantial increases in net assets. A more detailed discussion on debt is 
contained in a later section entitled “Outstanding Long-Term Debt”.  

Condensed Statement of Net Assets  
(amounts expressed in thousands)    
  Governmental Activities  

  
2007  2006 Percent 

Change 

Current and other assets  $     330,167    $     287,004 15.0% 
Capital assets  777,983       718,755 8.2 

Total assets  1,108,150  1,005,759 10.2 

Current liabilities  110,730  102,994 7.5 
Long-term liabilities  17,667  15,267 15.7 

Total liabilities  128,397  118,261 8.6 

Net assets:      
Invested in capital assets  777,983  718,755 8.2 
Restricted  106,607  91,598 16.4 
Unrestricted  95,163  77,145 23.4 

Total net assets  $     979,753  $     887,498 10.4 

 

 
The other components of net assets are restricted and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent those 
resources that have externally imposed constraints on their use. Restricted net assets increased by $15,009 
during the current fiscal year reflecting an increase in PWCS’ resources restricted for specific construction 
projects. Unrestricted net assets are those resources that may be used to meet the obligations placed on PWCS 
by it creditors and to pay for ongoing operations of the school division. At the end of the fiscal year unrestricted 
net assets amounted to $95,163, an increase of $18,018. All three components of net assets show positive 
balances.  
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Prince William County Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 
 
 

 

Changes in Net Assets      
(amounts expressed in thousands)      
 Governmental Activities   

 2007  2006  Percent 
Change 

Program revenues:      
Charges for services $              20,096  $             18,528  8.5% 
Operating grants and contributions 93,536  84,723  10.4 
Capital grants and contributions 990  961  3.0 

General revenues:      
Federal 708  554  27.8 
State 290,303  253,732  14.4 
County 473,073  437,701  8.1 
Unrestricted investment earnings 6,712  5,409  24.1 
Other 4,302  3,229  33.2 

Total revenues 889,720  804,837  10.6 
      
Expenses:      
Instructional:      

Regular 392,821  331,903  18.4 
Special 90,322  83,794  7.8 
Other 9,151  8,657  5.7 
Instructional leadership 48,346  43,389  11.4 

Support services:      
General administration 6,856  6,045  13.4 
Student services 9,892  8,820  12.2 
Curricular/staff development 12,735  12,036  5.8 
Pupil transportation 45,570  40,152  13.5 
Operations 20,120  21,618  (6.9) 
Utilities 21,448  19,586  9.5 
Maintenance 23,284  19,546  19.1 
Central business services 37,801  42,117  (10.2) 
Reimbursement to County for debt service 52,929  48,220  9.8 
Food service 25,492  23,163  10.1 
Community service operations 698  649  7.6 

Total expenses 797,465  709,695  12.4 
      
Change in net assets 92,255  95,142  (3.0) 
      
Net assets, beginning of year 887,498  792,356  12.0 
Net assets, end of year $            979,753  $           887,498  10.4 
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Prince William County Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 
 
 

cts. 

2006 “other revenue sources”. 

PWCS continued expansion of facilities.  

Changes in Net Assets 

Total revenues increased by $84,883 for a 10.6% 
increase over fiscal year 2006. This is primarily the 
result of increases in state aid and increased 
revenue from the County.   
 
53.1% of PWCS’ revenue comes from the primary 
government (PWC), 32.6% from the state, 12.9% 
in the form of program revenues (charges for 
services, operating and capital grants and 
contributions), and 1.4% from other categories.  
The funds PWCS receives from PWC are 
comprised, primarily, of two components; 56.75% 
of all county general revenues, and amounts 
provided to PWCS that are the result of bonds 
sold by PWC to fund schools capital proje
 
The component of PWCS’ “county revenue” that is 
a function of bond sales increased from fiscal year 
2006 by $4,184 or 6.5% while all other 
components of “county revenue” increased by 
$31,188 or 8.3%. For fiscal year 2007 there was an 8.1% increase of all components of “county revenue” 
$35,372. This increase is a function of the overall growth in PWC general revenues and the cooperative funding 
formula that exists between PWC and PWCS. “Other revenue sources” displayed on the statement of activities 
increased by $2,530 relative to FY 

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities

State Aid
32.6%

Unrestricted 
Investment 
Earnings

0.8%
Program Revenues

12.9%

County
53.1%

Federal
0.1%

Other
0.5%

$ 290,303 $ 473,073

$ 114,622

 
State revenue increased $36,571 or 14.4% due to 
both the increased growth in student enrollment and 
the calculation of the state’s funding of the standards 
of quality. 

Expenses - Governmental Activities

Operations and 
Maintenance

8.1%

Business Services
8.4%

Transportation, 
Food Service, 
Other Support

9.0%

Instruction
67.9%

Debt Service
6.6%

$ 540,640

$ 52,929

$ 71,760
$ 67,284 $ 64,852

 
The total cost of all programs increased by 12.4% to 
$797,465 in fiscal year 2007. 76.9% of the division’s 
expenses are related to the instruction of and caring 
for the needs of students (instruction, transportation, 
student service, and food service). The division’s 
business and administrative activities accounted for 
8.4% of total costs while operations and maintenance 
amounted to 8.1% of total cost. Reimbursements to 
the County for debt service totaled 6.6% of fiscal year 
2007 costs. For the fiscal year 2007, revenues 
exceeded expenses by a total of $92,255. A 
substantial portion of this excess is the recognition of 
revenues associated with capital outlay related to 

Governmental Activities  
 
The two primary sources of revenue for the school division are from Prince William County and the 
Commonwealth of Virginia. Funding from the County is provided through a revenue sharing agreement whereby 
the school division receives 56.75% of general county revenue. The budget is developed based upon projected 
revenue for that year. In the following fiscal year, revenues are adjusted to reflect the difference between 
projected and actual revenues (plus or minus). FY 2007 County funding was increased by $2,765 due to 
additional recognized revenues from FY2006. 
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Prince William County Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 
 
 
State funding is provided through a formula that calculates the state share of the cost of education, as determined 
in the Standards of Quality (SOQ), including basic aid, categorical areas, and sales tax. State funding in FY 2007 
increased for two primary reasons. First, State funding for basic and categorical aid increased as a result of the 
calculation of required state funding as defined in the state SOQ. Second, State funding also increases with 
growth in enrollment. State revenue increased from FY 2006 as a result of the state funding their share of the 
SOQ cost of the additional 2,498 students in the school division; an increase in student population of 3.6%.  
 
The FY 2007 expense budget was adjusted to fund schools and central departments for the costs of the 
additional student enrollment. The Net Cost of Governmental Activities table shows the cost of program services 
and the charges for services and grants offsetting those services. The following table shows, for government-type 
activities, the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The net cost of services reflects the support to be 
provided by tax revenue, state aid, and federal aid not restricted to specific programs.  
 
 

      

Net Cost of Governmental Activities      
(amounts expressed in thousands)        

         
 Total Cost of  Net Cost of  
 Services  Services  

 
2007  2006 Percent 

Change 2007  2006 Percent 
Change 

         
Instruction         

Regular $  392,821  $  331,903 18.4% $  355,158  $  302,703 17.3% 
Special 90,322  83,794 7.8 48,245  40,579 18.9 
Other 9,151  8,657 5.7 4,243  3,940 7.7 
Instructional leadership 48,346  43,389 11.4 48,346  43,389 11.4 

Total instruction 540,640  467,743 15.6 455,992  390,611 16.7 
         

Support services  
General administration 6,856  6,045 13.4 6,856  6,045 13.4 
Student services 9,892  8,820 12.2 9,892  8,820 12.2 
Curricular/staff development 12,735  12,036 5.8 12,585  11,966 5.2 
Pupil transportation 45,570  40,152 13.5 45,440  40,005 13.6 
Operations 20,120  21,618 (6.9) 20,085  21,568 (6.9) 
Utilities 21,448  19,586 9.5 21,448  19,586 9.5 
Maintenance 23,284  19,546 19.1 23,284  19,546 19.1 
Central business services 37,801  42,117 (10.2) 36,900  41,216 (10.5) 
Reimbursement to County for debt  52,929  48,220 9.8 52,929  48,220 9.8 
Food service 25,492  23,163 10.1 (2,381)  (1,946) 22.4 
Community service operations 698  649 7.6 (187)  (155) 20.6 

Total support services 256,825  241,952 6.1 226,851  214,871 5.6 
Total expenses $  797,465  $  709,695 12.4 $  682,843  $ 605,482 12.8 
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Prince William County Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007 
 
 
Governmental Activities (continued)  
 

• The cost of all governmental activities was $797,465. 
 

• The net cost of governmental activities was $682,843.  
 

• The amount the citizens of PWC paid for these activities through County taxes was $473,073.  
 

• The Commonwealth of Virginia contributed general revenue of $290,303.  
 

• Some of the other costs were paid for by:  
 

o Users who benefited from the programs: $20,096. 
o Total Grants and Contributions: $94,526. 
o Other payments: $11,722. 

 

• There are several significant activity changes in the net cost of services: 
 
o Special education costs increased as a result of increases in both student enrollment 

and program costs. 
 

o The net cost of regular instruction increased as a result of the final year of 
implementation of the full day kindergarten programs County-wide. 

  

o General administration costs increased for changes in the FY 2007 Approved budget 
as well as additional staffing. Costs also increased with the opening of one new middle 
school, two new elementary schools, and the staffing and startup costs associated with 
these schools.  

 

o Curricular/staff development increased resulting from the additional costs associated 
with two new supervisory staff and the associated support related to these positions. 

 

o Utility costs have increased with the opening of new schools as well as increased 
prices for heating and bus fuels. 

 

o Transportation costs have increased with the addition of new schools and 
improvements to the western end bell schedule. 

 

o Maintenance costs have increased as a result of enhanced program funding for the 
repair and maintenance of facilities focusing on the 5, 10 and 15 year periods.  

 

o Community services operations are subject to change each year as a function of the 
number of activities conducted within the community use of building (rental) program.  

 

 
 
Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds  
 
Information about PWCS’ major funds begins on page 33. These funds are accounted for using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds had total revenues of $889,720 and expenditures of 
$854,659. The net change in fund balance was most significant in the Construction Fund amounting to an 
increase of $27,246. This increase is due, primarily, to timing differences between the sale of bonds and the 
expenditures for the construction of the associated projects. 
  
The General Fund net change in fund balance of $5,172 reflects an increase resulting from General Fund 
activities ($5,509) and an increase related to PWCS’ funds used to repay PWC for debt they incur on behalf of 
PWCS ($337). The change in the General Fund’s fund balance is primarily a result of greater than anticipated 
savings in salary and benefit accounts with the largest savings coming from our supplemental retirement plan and 
health insurance premiums. The increase in fund balance in Other Governmental Funds of $2,741 is primarily 
attributable to concerted operational efforts to control costs and new reimbursement amounts with regard to some 
federal revenues. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights  
 
The PWCS’ budget is prepared in accordance with Virginia School Laws. The most significant budgeted fund is 
the General Fund. During the course of fiscal year 2007, PWCS amended its General Fund budget as follows:  
 

• Amended appropriation of $20,048 to reflect the carryover of encumbrances from Fiscal Year 
2006 to Fiscal Year 2007. 

 

• Amended appropriation of $25,431 to reflect the carryover of encumbrances from Fiscal Year 
2007 to Fiscal Year 2008.  

 

• Supplemental appropriation of $2,765 for PWCS’ share of FY 2006 revenues that exceeded the 
original FY 2006 revenue projections. Based upon the revenue sharing agreement with the 
County, PWCS develops the Approved budget based upon projected revenues. After the final 
close of the fiscal year, the County determines the actual revenues for the year (FY 2006). In the 
following fiscal year (FY 2007) an appropriation adjustment is made (plus or minus) to the school 
division budget to reflect the difference between the actual and projected revenues. The 
supplemental appropriation is net of other adjustments including contribution to the County fund 
balance.  

 

• Other supplemental appropriations totaling $6,926 for increases in federal, state, and local grants 
and for additional state aid due to a higher student population than originally projected in the 
budget, as well as $9,114 decrease in PWC funding due to the shortfall in the original revenue 
projections. 

 
PWCS’ final budget for the General Fund anticipated that expenses would exceed revenues by roughly $8,603. 
The actual results for the year show a savings of $5,172. The $5,172 reflects an effort by management to utilize 
increases in revenue and savings in expenditures to increase fund balance. The increased fund balance will be 
utilized to support future budgets in the five-year budget plan.  
 
Capital Assets  
 
At the end of fiscal year 2007, PWCS had $777,983 invested in furniture and equipment, land, buildings, and 
construction in progress in governmental-type activities. The following table shows fiscal year 2007 balances, net 
of accumulated depreciation. Readers interested in more detailed information on capital assets should refer to the 
Capital assets note in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.  
 
 

      

Capital Assets       
(net of accumulated depreciation)       
(amounts expressed in thousands)      
      
 Governmental    
 Activities   

 2007  2006  Percent 
Change 

Land  $       53,993  $     38,517  40.2% 
Construction in progress  75,842  41,136  84.4 

Depreciable capital assets  648,148  639,102  1.4 
Total  $     777,983 $   718,755 8.2 
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Major capital asset additions for FY 2007 included: 
 

• Completion of construction and opening of the following schools: 
o Rosa Parks Elementary School on Princedale Avenue, Dale City, 
o Buckland Mills Elementary School on Wharfdale Place, Gainesville, 
o Potomac Middle School on Four Year Trail, Dumfries. 

 
• Continued construction of one middle school, opening September 2007:  

o Wentworth Green Middle School on Limestone Drive, Gainesville 
 

• Commenced construction of Brightwood Elementary School located on 15500 Benita Fitzgerald 
Drive, Woodbridge; Gravely Elemementary School located on 4670 Waverly Farm Drive, 
Haymarket; and the Edward L. Kelly Leadership Center on Bristow Road, Manassas. 

• Four room addition of Tyler Elementary School 
 
• Land Acquisitions at the following locations:  

o Bristow Road and Wolf Run Lane for the new administration building, Edward L. Kelly 
Leadership Center, 

o Kettle Run for the future construction of the 11th High School and a new elementary 
school, 

o Dumfries Road for the future construction of the 12th High School. 
              

• Four room addition of Tyler Elementary School 
 

• Major renovations at 
o Osbourn Park High School, 
o Rockledge Elementary School, 
o Kerrydale Elementary School. 

 
 

• Purchase of 35 school buses. 
 

• Replacement of 34 trucks and other vehicles.  
 

• Implementation of an institutional technology network, I-Net, for all data, voice and video 
communications. 

 
The following major capital projects are included in PWCS’ fiscal year 2008 capital budget:  
 

• Brightwood Elementary School and Gravely Elementary School, estimated completion date 
September 2008, 

• Construction for the new administration building, Edward L. Kelly Leadership Center, estimated 
completion date Fall 2008, 

• Five room addition to Ashland Elementary School, 
• Eight room addition to Bel Air Elementary School, 
• Four room addition to Montclair Elementary School, 
• Continual implementation of an institutional technology network, I-Net.  

 
Funding for the FY 2008 capital projects includes a General Fund transfer of $4,700 and $68,111 to be financed 
by PWC through the sale of General Obligation bonds to the Virginia Public School Authority (VPSA) in the spring 
of 2008.  
 
Outstanding Long-Term Debt  
 
School divisions in the Commonwealth of Virginia are fiscally dependent, in that they do not have taxing authority 
and rely upon appropriations from the County/City. Only government entities with taxing authority are legally 
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permitted to incur long-term debt. Therefore, all debt required for capital projects for the school division is incurred 
by the County. As a result, PWC government retains the liability for the portion of general obligation bonds issued 
to fund capital projects for PWCS.  
 
The County Government appropriates funds to PWCS for the education of the students of PWC. The School 
Board, in its annual budget process and in consultation with the County, determines the amount of these funds to 
support the financing of capital projects for the school division. The School Board budgeted funds are used by the 
County to offset the debt service cost that the County incurs on the PWCS’ behalf.  
 
The following information is provided to acknowledge the portion of long-term debt that is incurred by the County 
at the request of the School Board and funded by the school district. At June 30, 2007, the County is liable for 
$506,973 in general obligation bonds and other long-term debt outstanding to support school capital projects. 
During FY 2007, outstanding long-term debt increased by a net $34,692 consisting of:  
 

• $30,283 in debt principal retired during the fiscal year; 
 

• $64,975 new debt issued during FY 2007:  
 

o $64,975 in sale of general obligation bonds to the Virginia Public School Authority 
(VPSA); 

 

o In addition, a bond premium of $3,167 was realized on the sale of the VPSA bonds. 
(Bringing the total funds available from the sale to $68,142); 

 

 
The FY 2008 Approved School Board budget provides funding for $57,109 to support the payment of debt service 
by the County. The budgeted debt service payments support the budgeted sale of $68,111 in new bonds to 
support school capital projects, as detailed in the FY2008 – 2012 Capital Improvements Program. Readers 
interested in more detailed information for long-term debt activity should refer to the Long-term debt note in the 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 
 
 

        

Outstanding Long-Term Debt       
(Incurred by PWC on behalf of PWCS)     
(amounts expressed in thousands)        
        

 Total     
 School Division     
     

  2007 2006  Percent 
Change  

General obligation bonds *  $    502,453 $    467,363  7.5%  
Literary loans   4,520           4,918  (8.1)  
Total   $    506,973 $    472,281  7.3  
        

*Includes G.O. bonds sold directly by County and through the Virginia Public School Authority 
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Bond Ratings 
 
The County’s general obligation bonds continue to maintain a “AAA” rating by Fitch Ratings. AAA is the highest 
rating awarded by a credit rating agency and certifies the County’s sound, consistent, and excellent financial 
management practices. The County is among a very select group of jurisdictions nationwide which carry a AAA 
bond rating. Also, the County received an “Aa1” by Moody’s Investors Service. 
 
Factors influencing future budgets:  
 
The FY 2008 budget provides funding for the following significant costs:  
 

• A step increase and pay adjustment averaging 4.9%.  
 
• Funding for current programs to support an increase of 1,760 students.  
 
• Funding to support the capital projects included in the FY 2008 – 2012 CIP.  

 
At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the school division was aware of the 
following existing circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in the future:  

 
• Student membership on September 30, 2007 was 72,654. This represents an increase of 1,931 

students for a growth rate in excess of 2.8%. The student membership was 478 students above the 
72,176 projected in the FY 2008 Approved Budget. The rate of student growth continues to place 
fiscal demands upon the school division requiring additional staff, buses, and classroom space. The 
moderation in the rate of growth should make the fiscal demands more manageable in future 
budgets. 

 
• In past, fiscal years actual revenues have exceeded the budgeted revenue resulting in surpluses to 

the schools. In fiscal year 2007 there is no actual revenue in excess of budget and therefore no 
additional funding. The County has also indicated that changes in the local economy will likely result 
in reduced revenues for FY 2008 as property values continue to decline.   

 
• Not only is the student population continuing to grow, but the demographics of the student population 

continue to change. The changes in student demographics increases the number of students 
requiring additional educational services, which in turn increases school division expenses to meet 
those needs. 

 
• The school division continues to receive information and assess the potential impact and associated 

costs of the federal No Child Left Behind legislation. The legislation will likely result in increased costs 
for remediation of under-performing students, and for improved information/data processing systems 
to meet additional federal requirements for student assessment and reporting.  

 
• During FY 2007 the school division experienced fuel (natural gas, heating fuel, vehicle fuels) costs 

that have continued to increase substantially. The FY 2008 budget will have to address the continuing 
volatility in energy prices. 

 
• The costs for school construction and renovation continue to climb with inflationary increases of as 

much as 6% - 8% per year. The costs have increased as a function of high demand in both the 
national and international markets and the rebuilding efforts from hurricanes in the past several years. 
These costs continue to impact the fiscal ability of the school division to sustain the construction and 
renovation of our facilities. 
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• During the seven year period prior to fiscal year 2007, the growth in real estate values had enabled 
both a reduction in the real property rate of 60 cents to a value of $0.76 while providing additional 
revenues to the County and School Board. In fiscal year 2007 the tax rate was increased to $0.787 
per $100 of assessed value. Moderate declines in the value of assessed property in fiscal year 2007 
will most likely be followed by more substantial declines in fiscal years 2008 and 2009 creating 
additional budgetary challenges in the future. 

 
• The school division has assessed the liability and budgetary impacts of Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) Statement #45 - Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. PWCS has addressed the new standard in the FY 
2008 budget process by fully funding the annual required contribution resulting from GASB 45. 
Current actuarial estimates place the actuarial accrued liability for the School Division’s post 
employment benefits at $26,877 with a required contribution of just over 3 million dollars. 

 
• Fiscal year 2008 is the second year of the biennial budget process for the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

The budget for Fiscal year 2008 may be impacted by a number of significant changes including: 
 

o Updated student enrollment projections 
 
o Continued updating of rates for the Virginia Retirement System 

 
o Programmatic changes are not likely to be significant in the second year of the biennium. 

 
• The change in the local composite index (LCI) for the coming biennium is going to have an impact on 

funding provided to Prince William County Schools by the state. Prince William County Public 
Schools’ LCI will go from .4287 for the 2006-2008 biennium to .4441 for the 2008-2010 biennium. 
This increase in the LCI represents the state’s expectation that the locality has the ability to bear a 
larger burden of the funding of education and, therefore, a reduction in share of state education 
dollars. 

 
Contacting the Prince William County Public Schools’ Financial Management  
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, parents, students, and creditors 
with a general overview of PWCS’ finances and to show PWCS’ accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information contact the Department of Financial 
Services at Prince William County Public Schools, P.O. Box 389, Manassas, Virginia 20108, 703.791.8753 or 
online at http://www.pwcs.edu/departments/finance/ 

27

http://www.pwcs.edu/departments/finance/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 
 
 

 28



 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Basic Financial Statements 

29



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 
 
 

 30



Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit 1
Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2007

Governmental 
Activities

ASSETS
Equity in cash and pooled investments $        200,268,926
Accounts receivable and other current assets 791,449
Due from other governmental units 19,675,461
Inventory 2,824,148
Restricted assets:

Restricted cash 106,607,133
Capital assets:

Land 53,992,969
Construction in progress 75,841,671
Depreciable capital assets 870,808,325
Less: accumulated depreciation (222,660,207)

Total assets 1,108,149,875

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12,961,140
Salaries payable and withholdings 77,055,145
Due to other governmental units 811,273
Retainage 2,799,038
Unearned revenue 5,595,590
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 11,507,678
Due in more than one year 17,667,486

Total liabilities 128,397,350

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 777,982,758
Restricted for:
   Capital projects 106,607,133
Unrestricted 95,162,634

Total net assets $        979,752,525

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit 2
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Functions/Programs                                      Expenses  Charges for 
Services 

 Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

 Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions 

 Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 
Change in Net 

Assets 

Governmental activities:
Instruction:

Regular $     392,821,237 515,496               37,045,036          103,095               (355,157,610)          
Special 90,322,226          123,419               41,953,470          -                      (48,245,337)            
Other 9,150,435            1,714,927            3,192,950            -                      (4,242,558)              
Instructional leadership 48,346,340          -                      -                      -                      (48,346,340)            

Total instruction 540,640,238        2,353,842            82,191,456          103,095               (455,991,845)          

Support services:
General administration 6,855,681            -                      -                      -                      (6,855,681)              
Student services 9,892,225            -                      -                      -                      (9,892,225)              
Curricular/staff development 12,735,313          2,055                   147,961               -                      (12,585,297)            
Pupil transportation 45,569,682          129,265               -                      -                      (45,440,417)            
Operations 20,120,445          35,365                 -                      -                      (20,085,080)            
Utilities 21,447,535          -                      -                      -                      (21,447,535)            
Maintenance 23,284,372          -                      -                      -                      (23,284,372)            
Central business services 37,799,893          13,460                 -                      886,422               (36,900,011)            
Reimbursement to County for debt service 52,929,170 - - - (52,929,170)

Program Revenues

Reimbursement to County for debt service 52,929,170          -                    -                    -                     (52,929,170)           
Food service 25,491,560          16,676,497          11,196,469          -                      2,381,406               
Community service operations 698,424               885,913               -                      -                      187,489                  

Total support services 256,824,300        17,742,555          11,344,430          886,422               (226,850,893)          
Total governmental activities $     797,464,538 20,096,397          93,535,886          989,517               (682,842,738)          

General revenues:
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs:  

 Federal 707,755                  
 State 290,303,018           
 County 473,072,544           

 Unrestricted investment earnings 6,712,122               
 Miscellaneous revenues 4,301,966               
 Total general revenues 775,097,405           
 

 Change in net assets 92,254,667             

Net assets, beginning of year 887,497,858           
Net assets, end of year $     979,752,525

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit 3
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
As of June 30, 2007

General    
Fund 

Construction 
Fund

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS

Equity in cash and pooled investments 109,518,103$  54,712,006      5,967,128        170,197,237    
Restricted cash -                   106,607,133    -                   106,607,133    

   Accounts receivable 221,543           242,276           143,528           607,347           
   Due from other governmental units 18,019,364      -                   1,656,097        19,675,461      
   Inventory 823,673           -                   1,103,566        1,927,239        

     Total assets 128,582,683$  161,561,415    8,870,319        299,014,417    

LIABILITIES and FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:  
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,920,387$      6,103,838        325,420           12,349,645      
   Salaries payable and withholdings 76,523,436      20,980             501,378           77,045,794      
   Retainage payable 2,350               2,796,688        -                   2,799,038        

Unearned revenue 461,810           -                   860,080           1,321,890        
     Total liabilities 82,907,983      8,921,506        1,686,878        93,516,367      

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Inventory 823,673 - 1,103,566 1,927,239e to y 823,673                          1,103,566       1,927,239      
Unreserved, reported in:

General Fund:
Designated for encumbrances 25,430,811      -                   -                   25,430,811      
Designated for future years' expenditures 13,242,413      -                   -                   13,242,413      
Designated for grants and special projects 58,025             -                   -                   58,025             
Undesignated 6,119,778        -                   -                   6,119,778        

Capital Projects:
Designated for encumbrances -                   76,783,628      -                   76,783,628      
Designated for future years' expenditures -                   75,045,008      -                   75,045,008      
Designated for payments to PWC for arbitrage rebate -                   811,273           -                   811,273           

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:
Designated for encumbrances -                   -                   41,875             41,875             
Designated for future years' expenditures -                   -                   711,715           711,715           
Undesignated -                   -                   5,326,285        5,326,285        
     Total fund balances 45,674,700      152,639,909    7,183,441        205,498,050    
     Total liabilities and fund balances 128,582,683$  161,561,415    8,870,319        299,014,417    

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit 4
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2007

Total fund balances - governmental funds  205,498,050$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the fund statements.

Land 53,992,969$     
Construction in progress 75,841,671       
Library books 3,551,012         
Buildings and improvements 782,144,128     
Equipment 20,339,931       
Vehicles 64,773,254       
Total capital assets 1,000,642,965  
Accumulated depreciation (222,660,207)    777,982,758       

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not repeorted in the funds

Compensated absences (23,057,587)      
Other liabilities (811,273)           (23,868,860)       

Net Assets of internal service funds. 20,140,577         

Net assets - governmental activities 979,752,525$     

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit 5
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

General        
Fund 

 Construction 
Fund 

 Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
REVENUES:
Use of money and property:

Use of money - interest 4,375,958$       6,294,595         268,695            10,939,248       
Use of property -                    -                    885,913            885,913            

Charges for services 5,421,566         -                    16,640,801       22,062,367       
Intergovernmental:

Federal 26,334,718       -                    10,578,272       36,912,990       
State 347,974,643     -                    393,334            348,367,977     
County 390,016,922     78,828,337       -                    468,845,259     

Miscellaneous 1,414,020         30,828              260,558            1,705,406         
Total revenues 775,537,827     85,153,760       29,027,573       889,719,160     

EXPENDITURES:  
Current:

Regular instruction 373,887,308     4,844,867         -                    378,732,175     
Special instruction 90,532,516       -                    -                    90,532,516       
Other instruction 9,175,431         -                    -                    9,175,431         
Instructional leadership 48,346,340       -                    -                    48,346,340       
General administration 6,855,950         -                    -                    6,855,950         
Student services 9,909,103         -                    -                    9,909,103         
Curricular/staff development 12,769,678       -                    -                    12,769,678       
Pupil transportation 43 358 633 43 358 633Pupil transportation 43,358,633     -                  -                    43,358,633     
Operations 20,090,888       -                    -                    20,090,888       
Utilities 21,447,535       -                    -                    21,447,535       
Maintenance 23,358,484       -                    -                    23,358,484       
Central business services 43,327,109       -                    -                    43,327,109       
Community service operations -                    -                    698,424            698,424            
Food services -                    -                    25,487,878       25,487,878       
Reimbursement to the County for debt service 51,642,363       877,360            -                    52,519,723       

Capital outlay -                    68,049,588       -                    68,049,588       
Total expenditures 754,701,338     73,771,815       26,186,302       854,659,455     

Excess of revenues over expenditures 20,836,489       11,381,945       2,841,271         35,059,705       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN:
   General fund -                    16,864,360       -                    16,864,360       
   Construction fund 1,000,000         -                    -                    1,000,000         
   Facilities Use fund 100,000            -                    -                    100,000            

Self-Insurance fund 100,000            -                    -                    100,000            
TRANSFERS OUT:
   General fund -                    (1,000,000)        (100,000)           (1,100,000)        
   Construction fund (16,864,360)      -                    -                    (16,864,360)      
        Total other financing sources (uses), net (15,664,360)      15,864,360       (100,000)           100,000            

Net change in fund balances 5,172,129         27,246,305       2,741,271         35,159,705       

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 40,502,571       125,393,604     4,442,170         170,338,345     

FUND BALANCES, end of year 45,674,700$    152,639,909     7,183,441         205,498,050     

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit 6
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Total net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 35,159,705$                 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Certain revenues that are disclosed in the Statement of Activities do not provide current financial
resources and are, therefore, not reported in the funds. (2,765,499)                    

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.  However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense.  This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeds depreciation in the period:

Capital outlays 83,285,607$        
Depreciation expense (23,123,559)         60,162,048                   

The net effect of various transactions including disposal of capital assets. (934,193)                       

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated absences, 
do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. (1,889,222)                    

Activities of Internal Service Funds that serve governmental activities 2,521,828                     

Change in net assets of governmental activities 92,254,667$                 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit 7
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive/ 
 (Negative) 

REVENUES:
Use of money and property:

Use of money - interest -$                      4,375,958       4,375,958       -                     
Charges for services 1,949,028             4,547,654       5,421,566       873,912              
Intergovernmental:

Federal 24,988,678           26,537,167     26,334,718     (202,449)            
State 349,931,552         349,161,233   347,974,643   (1,186,590)         
County 402,020,856         390,634,998   390,016,922   (618,076)            

Miscellaneous -                        2,760,178       1,414,020       (1,346,158)         
Total revenues 778,890,114         778,017,188   775,537,827   (2,479,361)         

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Regular instruction 386,333,191         377,363,225   373,887,308   3,475,917           
Special instruction 91,072,872           93,632,620     90,532,516     3,100,104           
Other instruction 7,833,777             8,920,238       9,175,431       (255,193)            
Instructional leadership 50,552,444           51,116,601     48,346,340     2,770,261           
G l d i i t ti 7 249 465 6 672 366 6 855 950 (183 584)

 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

General administration 7,249,465           6,672,366     6,855,950       (183,584)          
Student services 9,513,766             9,550,523       9,909,103       (358,580)            
Curricular/staff development 12,295,948           12,289,767     12,769,678     (479,911)            
Pupil transportation 45,596,927           42,100,449     43,358,633     (1,258,184)         
Operations 19,052,554           19,199,040     20,090,888     (891,848)            
Utilities 31,182,819           … 28,429,159     21,447,535     6,981,624           
Maintenance 25,163,172           23,901,338     23,358,484     542,854              
Central business services 43,574,150           45,725,198     43,327,109     2,398,089           
Reimbursement to the County for debt service 52,933,029           52,933,029     51,642,363     1,290,666           

Total expenditures 782,354,114         771,833,553   754,701,338   17,132,215         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (3,464,000)            6,183,635       20,836,489     14,652,854         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN:
   Construction fund 1,000,000             1,000,000       1,000,000       -                     
   Facilities Use fund -                        100,000          100,000          -                     
   Self-Insurance fund -                        100,000          100,000          -                     
TRANSFERS OUT:
   Construction fund (10,272,000)          (15,987,000)    (16,864,360)    (877,360)            

Total other financing uses, net (9,272,000)            (14,787,000)    (15,664,360)    (877,360)            

Net change in fund balance (12,736,000)          (8,603,365)      5,172,129       13,775,494         

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 40,502,571           40,502,571     40,502,571     -                     

FUND BALANCE, end of year 27,766,571$        31,899,206     45,674,700     13,775,494         

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit 8
Statement of Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds
As of June 30, 2007

Internal Service 
Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:
  Equity in cash and pooled investments 30,071,689$     
  Accounts receivable and other current assets 184,102            
  Inventory 896,909            

Total current assets 31,152,700       

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 611,495            
  Salaries payable and withholdings 9,351                
  Unearned revenue 4,273,700         
  Incurred but not reported claims 5,189,230         

Total  current liabilities 10,083,776       

Noncurrent liabilities:
   Incurred but not reported claims 928,347            

Total liabilities 11,012,123       

NET ASSETS
  Unrestricted 20,140,577$     

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools  Exhibit 9
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Internal Service 
Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services 59,758,841$     

Total operating revenues 59,758,841       

Operating Expenses:
Personnel services 1,033,688         
Materials/supplies 135,048            
Administrative costs 3,556,988         
Premiums 4,864,133         
Claims and benefits paid 42,701,261       
Losses and unallocated loss adjustment 1,932,504         
Cost of goods sold 4,428,898         

Total operating expenses 58,652,520       

Operating income 1,106,321         

Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest and miscellaneous 1,515,507         

   Income before transfers 2,621,828         

Transfers out (100,000)           

Change in net assets 2,521,828         

Net Assets, beginning of year 17,618,749       

Net Assets, end of year 20,140,577$     

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit  10
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Internal Service 
Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers and users 60,178,736$     
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (56,113,249)      
Payments to employees (1,037,766)        
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,027,721         

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Transfers to other funds (211,664)           

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received from investments 1,457,442         

Net increase in equity in cash and pooled investments 4,273,499         

Equity in cash and pooled investments, beginning of year 25,798,190       

Equity in cash and pooled investments, end of year 30,071,689$     Equity in cash and pooled investments, end of year 30,071,689$     

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating income 1,106,321$       
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities
   Change in assets and liabilities:
     Decrease in accounts receivable 182,911            
     Decrease in inventories 142,169            
     Increase in unearned revenue 236,984            
     Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 206,560            
     (Decrease) in salaries payable and withholdings (4,078)               
     Increase in incurred but not reported claims 1,156,854         
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,027,721$       

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools Exhibit 11
Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
As of June 30, 2007

Agency Funds

Assets
Cash and pooled investments 7,412,703$      
Due from other governmental units 2,142,771        
Total assets 9,555,474$      

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,555,474$      

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Prince William County Public Schools 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2007 
 
NOTE 1 – Summary of significant accounting policies  
 
A. Financial reporting entity  
 
Prince William County Public Schools (PWCS) is a corporate body operating under the constitution of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia and the Code of Virginia. The eight members of the School Board are elected by 
the citizens of Prince William County (PWC) to serve four-year terms. One member represents each of the 
County's seven magisterial districts and the chairman serves at large. PWCS is organized to focus on 
meeting the needs of its 70,723 students while managing 85 schools and centers. The mission of PWCS is 
to provide programs to meet the educational needs of all students in the County in a safe learning 
environment.  PWCS receives funding from taxes collected and allocated by the County; tuition and fees; 
and state and federal aid. School construction projects are funded by the proceeds of general obligation 
bonds issued by the County and approved by the County voters.  Other sources of PWCS school 
construction funding are Virginia Public School Authority (VPSA) bonds, Literary Fund loans, and cash 
funding.  Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America establish PWCS as a 
component unit of the County.   
 
B. Division-wide and fund financial statements 
 
The basic financial statements include both division-wide statements, based on the entity as a whole, and 
fund financial statements that focus only on the individual funds defined by PWCS.  Management's 
discussion and analysis, although not part of the basic financial statements, are a narrative introduction and 
analytical overview of the government's financial activities in the form of "management's discussion and 
analysis" (MD&A). This analysis is similar to the analysis private sector entities provide in their annual 
reports. 
 
Division-wide financial statements The reporting model includes financial statements prepared using full 
accrual accounting for all of the division’s activities. This approach includes not just current assets and 
liabilities (such as cash and accounts payable), but also capital assets and long-term liabilities. Accrual 
accounting requires that all of the revenues and costs of providing services each year are reported, not just 
those received or paid in the current year or soon thereafter. Fiduciary funds are not included in the 
division-wide financial statements. 
 
The basic financial statements include both division-wide statements where the focus is on the division as a 
whole and fund financial statements where the focus is on the major individual funds. PWCS does not 
engage in business-type activities and, therefore, issues single column division-wide financial statements. In 
the division-wide statement of net assets, assets and liabilities are (a) presented on a consolidated basis and 
(b) reflected, on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and 
receivables as well as long-term obligations. 
 
Statement of net assets - The statement of net assets is designed to display the financial position of the 
primary government. PWCS reports all capital assets in the division-wide statement of net assets and reports 
depreciation expense - the cost of "using up" capital assets - in the statement of activities. The net assets of 
PWCS are broken down into three categories - 1) invested in capital assets 2) restricted and 3) unrestricted. 
 
Statement of activities - The division-wide statement of activities reports expenses and revenues in a format 
that focuses on the cost of each PWCS function. The expense of individual functions is compared to the 
revenues generated directly by the function (for instance, through user charges or intergovernmental grants). 
These directly matched revenues are called program revenues. This format enables the division-wide 
statement of activities to reflect both the gross and net cost per functional category (regular instruction, 
special instruction, pupil transportation, etc.) that are otherwise being supported by general government 
revenues. 
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Program revenues must be directly associated with a function and are restricted to meeting the operational 
or capital requirements of a particular function.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
functional category and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular functional category.  Other items that are not properly included among program 
revenues are reported as general revenues. 
 
Direct expenses are considered those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function.  PWCS does not 
allocate indirect expenses. 
 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the division-wide financial 
statements.  Exceptions to this rule include payments to, and other charges between the PWCS supply 
function and other functions of PWCS.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenues of the functions concerned. 
 
Fund financial statements Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary 
funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the division-wide financial statements. 
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of PWCS are organized on the basis of 
funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate accounting entity, 
with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and/or other financial resources together with all related 
liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of 
carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, 
restrictions, or limitations. The fund statements are presented on a current financial resource measurement 
focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. This is the manner in which these funds are normally 
budgeted. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and 
basis of accounting than the division-wide statements' governmental activities column, a reconciliation is 
presented which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to reconcile the fund financial statements to the 
governmental activities column of the division-wide financial statements.  
 
PWCS' fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements.  Since by definition these assets are 
being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of PWCS, 
these funds are not incorporated into the division-wide statements. 
 
Budgetary comparison schedules Demonstrating compliance with the adopted budgets is an important 
component of a government's accountability to the public. Many citizens participate in the process of 
establishing the annual operating budgets of state and local governments, and have a keen interest in 
following the financial progress of their governments over the course of the year. For this reason, PWCS has 
chosen to make its budgetary comparison statement of the General Fund part of the basic financial 
statements. PWCS and many other governments revise their original budgets over the course of the year for 
a variety of reasons. Under the new reporting model, governments will continue to provide budgetary 
comparison information in their annual reports. An important change, however, is a requirement to add the 
government's original budget to the current comparison of final budget and actual results. 
 
C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 
 
The division-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. 
 
Non-exchange transactions include grants and donations where PWCS either gives or receives value without 
directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange. Revenues from general-purpose grants are recognized 
in the period for which they are earned. 
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It is PWCS policy to first use restricted resources for expenses incurred for which both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. This focus is on the determination of, and changes in 
financial position, and generally only current assets and current liabilities are included on the balance sheet. 
Revenues are recorded as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be 
available when they are collectible within a current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, PWCS considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 
days of the end of the current fiscal period.  PWCS’ primary revenues susceptible to accrual include grants, 
intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, and interest on investments. 
 
PWCS reports the following major funds: 
 
Governmental Funds: 
 

General Fund: The General Fund is the operating fund of PWCS and is used to account for the 
revenues and expenditures necessary for the day-to-day operation of PWCS. This fund is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 
Construction Fund: The Construction Fund is used to account for the financial resources to be used for 
the acquisition, construction, or repair of PWCS major capital facilities. 

 
Proprietary Funds: 
 
Internal service funds account for health insurance, self-insurance, and warehouse services provided to 
departments of PWCS on a cost reimbursement basis.  Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and 
expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing 
operations. 
 

Self-Insurance Fund:  The Self-insurance Fund was created to account for the accumulation of 
resources to pay for workers’ compensation losses incurred by the partial or total retention of risk of loss 
arising out of the assumption of risk rather than transferring that risk to a third party through the purchase 
of commercial insurance. 

 
Health Insurance Fund: The Health Insurance Fund was created to better manage health care 
expenses within PWCS. The primary sources of revenue for this fund are employer contributions paid by 
the other funds and employee contributions deducted from employee pay on a semi-monthly basis. 
 
Warehouse Fund: The Warehouse Fund was created to account for the operations of the warehouse.  
This warehouse operation maintains inventories for maintenance, educational supplies, and office 
supplies.  Revenues and expenditures are predominantly a result of operations of the warehouse 
function. 
 

Fiduciary Funds: 
 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, 
and other governments. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of 
operations. Agency funds include the regional school fund and the student activity fund. 
 
 
 

45



D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity 
 
Deposits and investments 
 
The County maintains a single cash and investment pool for use by the County and some of its component 
units including PWCS.  All PWCS funds are maintained in this account except for the School Board Student 
Activity Fund.  Cash and pooled investments represent the majority of PWCS' available cash. 
 
Investments are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices.  In order to maximize investment 
returns, these funds are maintained in a fully insured or collateralized investment pool administered by the 
County. The County allocates investment earnings, less an administrative charge, to PWCS monthly based 
on PWCS’ average daily balance in cash investments.   
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund type considers all highly liquid investments 
with original maturities less than three months, including pooled investments and restricted assets, to be 
cash equivalents. 
 
Deposits  
At June 30, all of the County's deposits were covered by federal depository related insurance or 
collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the Act). Under the Act, banks 
holding public deposits in excess of the amounts insured by FDIC must pledge collateral in the amount of 
50% of excess deposits to a collateral pool in the name of the Commonwealth Treasury Board. If any 
member bank fails, the entire collateral pool becomes available to satisfy the claims of governmental entities. 
With the ability to make additional assessments, the multiple bank collateral pool functions similar to 
depository insurance. Savings and loan institutions are required to collateralize 100% of deposits in excess 
of FDIC limits. The Commonwealth Treasury Board is responsible for monitoring compliance with the 
collateralization and reporting requirements of the Act. 
 
Cash in the student activity fund represents available cash in the local school accounts, all of which are fully 
insured or collateralized. Bank balances, including checking and savings accounts and certificates of deposit, 
are placed with banks and savings and loan institutions which are protected by FDIC laws or collateral held 
under the provisions of the Act. 
 
All funds deposited in accordance with the requirements of the Act are considered fully secured and are not 
subject to custodial credit risk. 
 
Restricted cash of $106,607,133, at june 30, 2007 consists of funds held by trustees for the funding of 
specific construction projects. 
 
Investments 
State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the United States or agencies thereof, 
obligations of the Commonwealth or political subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development (World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development 
Bank, "prime quality" commercial paper, corporate notes rated AA or better by Standard & Poor's, Inc. and 
Aa or better by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements, money 
market mutual funds, the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) and State Non-
Arbitrage Program (SNAP).  PWCS’ pro rata share of the County’s pooled investments was approximately 
33.6% at June 30, 2007.  The investments contained in the County’s pool of investments are subject to 
investment rate and custodial credit risk. 
 
The maturities of the County's investments range from one day to ten years. While the County normally plans 
to hold investments to maturity, it may sell securities before their maturity.  For additional information please 
refer to the County CAFR.  Copies of the County’s CAFR may be obtained by writing the Finance Office at 
One County Complex Court, Prince William, Virginia 22192-9201 or by download from their website at 
http://www.pwcgov.org. 
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Receivables and payables 
All interfund receivables and payables are displayed in the fund statements as "due to/due from other funds."  
These amounts offset each other and are eliminated from the division-wide statement of net assets, so as to 
not overstate PWCS' assets and liabilities.  All trade receivables are reported net of an allowance for 
uncollectables. 
 
Inventory 
Inventory in the Warehouse and Food Services funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption.  
PWCS values the inventory at cost and utilizes the consumption method of recording inventories.  With the 
consumption method, the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are 
consumed. In the fund statements, Food Service inventories are offset by a fund balance reserve, which 
indicates that they do not constitute available expendable resources, even though they are a component of 
assets.  The value of the Warehouse inventory is determined by the weighted average cost method. The 
value of the Food Services inventory is determined by the first-in first-out method. 
  
Capital assets 
Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment, vehicles and library books, are 
reported in the division-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by PWCS as assets with an 
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.    Such assets 
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost where no historical records exist.  Donated capital 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of the donation.   
 
PWCS evaluates prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting capital assets to determine 
whether impairment of a capital asset has occurred. A capital asset is generally considered impaired if both 
(a) the decline in service utility of the capital asset is large in magnitude and (b) in the event or change in 
circumstance is outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset.  Impaired capital assets that will no longer 
be used by PWCS are reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value. Impairment losses on capital 
assets that will continue to be used by PWCS are measured using the method that best reflects the 
diminished service utility of the capital asset. Any insurance recoveries received as a result of impairment 
events or changes in circumstances resulting in the impairment of a capital asset are netted against the 
impairment loss. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Assets Years  

Buildings 20-50 
Improvements 2-50 
Equipment 2-20 
Vehicles 3-15 
Library books 5 

 
Compensated absences 
It is PWCS' policy to permit employees to accumulate earned, but unused, vacation and sick pay benefits. In 
governmental fund types, the cost of vacation and sick pay benefits (compensated absences) is recognized 
when payments are made to employees.  A liability for all governmental fund type vacation and sick pay 
benefits is recorded as a liability in the division-wide statement of net assets.   
 
Fund equity 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are 
not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. 
Designations of fund balance represent management plans that are subject to change. Fund balances in the 
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governmental funds are reserved for inventories to indicate the amounts are not available for other 
expenditures.   
 
Encumbrances 
Encumbrance accounting, the recording of purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of 
formal budgetary integration in all governmental funds.  Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported 
as designations of fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.  Encumbrances are 
normally re-appropriated each year by County Board resolution. 
 
Construction commitments 
At June 30, 2007 PWCS had contractual commitments of $76,783,628 in the Construction fund for 
construction of various projects. 
 
E. Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements 
 
 
GASB has issued several statements with effective implementation dates later than June 30, 2007.  The 
statements deemed to have a future impact on PWCS are as follows: 
 
GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits 
Other than Pensions.  This statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of 
other postemployment benefits (OPEB) expenditures and related liabilities, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information.  PWCS is a Phase I government, therefore, this statement is effective for fiscal 
periods beginning after December 15, 2006, based on the implementation schedule of GASB Statement No. 
34.  PWCS has identified its estimated liability and annual cost for the employees' postretirement medical 
and dental plans, as well as the Retiree Health Insurance Premium Contribution Plan.  The Projected Unit 
Credit Actuarial Cost Method was used to determine the liabilities, a 7.5% discount rate and an amortization 
of the initial unfunded actuarial liability over 30 years.  Once implemented, PWCS will disclose in the Notes 
to the Financial Statements an Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) of $26,877,000. Additionaly, PWCS plans  
to fully fund the Annual Required Contribution of $3,050,000.  PWCS is prepared to implement this 
statement during the next fiscal year. 
 
GASB Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers 
of Assets and Future Revenues.  This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for 
transactions in which a government receives, or is entitled to, resources in exchange for future cash flows 
generated by collecting specific receivables or specific future revenues.  This statement is effective for fiscal 
periods beginning after December 15, 2006.  PWCS is in the process of completing their assessment of 
GASB Statement No. 48 and does not believe the implementation will have a material impact on the financial 
statements of the Schools.  PWCS is prepared to implement this statement during the next fiscal year. 
 
GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations.This 
establishes a framework for the recognition and measurement of pollution remediation liabilities.  A pollution 
remediation obligation addresses the current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by 
participation in pollution remediation activities.  This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after 
December 15, 2007.  Management is in the process of completing their assessment of this GASB statement 
and has not implemented this statement. 
 
GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures.  This statement requires defined benefit pension plans and 
defined contribution plans to disclose in the notes to financial statements and required supplemental 
information, additional information to improve the transparency and decision usefulness of financial reporting. 
This statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2007.  PWCS is prepared to implement this 
statement during the next fiscal year. 
 
GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets.  This statement requires 
that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions be classified as capital assets.  
Guidance is provided relating to the accounting and financial reporting for intangible assets to reduce 
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inconsistencies in reporting and improve comparability among the state and local governments.  This 
statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.  Management is in the process of 
completing their assessment of this GASB statement and has not implemented this statement. 
 
Note 2 - Stewardship, compliance, and accountability 
 
A.  Budgetary information 
 
The Code of Virginia requires the appointed superintendent of PWCS to submit a budget to the County 
Board of Supervisors, with the approval of the School Board. In February, the Superintendent submits a 
budget plan to the School Board and to the community. The budget plan is discussed in a series of 
workshops and public hearings. In March, the School Board adopts the advertised budget and forwards it to 
the County for inclusion in the County Executive's advertised budget plan. In April, after public hearings, the 
County Board of Supervisors determines the level of funding for PWCS.   If the requested level of funding is 
approved there are no further actions taken by the School Board.  If the funding request is changed by the 
County the budget is reworked by PWCS staff and then adopted by the School Board. The approved budget 
is the basis for operating PWCS in the next fiscal year. 
 
Annual budgets are adopted for all funds except for the student activity fund.  Project length financial plans 
are adopted for all capital projects in the Construction Fund.  PWCS uses the modified accrual basis of 
accounting in budgeting for governmental funds. The budgets are on a basis consistent with GAAP. All 
annual appropriations lapse at year-end. The budget is revised and amended in October based on 
September 30 student enrollments.   
 
The budget is controlled at certain legal as well as administrative levels. The legal level is placed at the 
individual fund level and administrative control is placed at the agency level.  Amendments that change the 
total level of expenditures require the approval of the School Board and County Board of Supervisors. 
 
B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2007, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the General Fund for Other 
Instruction, General Administration, Student Services, Curricular/Staff Development, Pupil Transportation, 
and Operations.  Excess budget in other functions covered the shortfall in the mentioned functional areas. In 
addition, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the Facilities Use Fund by $20,126. These excess 
expenditures were funded by greater than anticipated revenues.   
 
Note 3 – Receivables and due from other governmental units 
 
Due from other governments and receivables at June 30, 2007 for PWCS’ individual major funds, non major, 
internal service, and fiduciary funds, in the aggregate, are as follows (all receivables are considered fully 
collectable and, therefore, an allowance for uncollectible accounts is not disclosed). 
 
   General 

Fund 
 Capital 

Projects 
 Non  Major 

Funds 
 Internal 

Service 
 

Fiduciary 
 

 
Total 

 

Other receivables $ 221,543  242,276  143,528  184,102  -   
 

 791,449 
Federal  5,102,939  -    1,656,097  -    -   

 

 6,759,036 
State  12,916,425  -    -    -    26,000   

 

 12,942,425 
Other localities  -    -    -    -    2,116,771 

 

 2,116,771 
Total $ 18,240,907  242,276  1,799,625  184,102  2,142,771 

 

 22,609,681 
 
Amounts due from the Federal government in the General Fund are attributed primarily to the Title VI B, I, II, 
and III grants.  Titles I, II, and III programs enhance instruction for disadvantaged children while Title VI B 
helps provide special education and related services. 
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A significant portion of the receivable from the Commonwealth of Virginia in the General Fund is attributed to 
state sales taxes due to the PWCS. The Virginia Retail Sales and Use Tax Act requires one and one eighth 
out of every five cents collected in state sales tax to be distributed to school divisions.  
 
Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not 
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.  Governmental funds also defer 
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.  Internal 
service funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources received but not earned.  At the 
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental 
and internal service funds were as follows: 

  
 Unearned 

Food Service  $        860,080 
General Fund  461,810 
Governmental Funds  1,321,890 
Health Insurance Fund (internal service fund)  4,273,700 
Total  $     5,595,590 

 
Note 4 - Interfund transfers 
 
During the current year, PWCS made the following interfund transfers: 
 

 

 Transfer In: 
 

 General Construction 
 Fund Fund

Transfer Out: 
General Fund $ -           16,864,360 
Construction Fund   1,000,000                        -  
Non Major Funds                                                          100,000                        - 
Internal Service Fund                                                    100,000        __________ 

 
Total $1,200,000         16,864,360 
 

 
Interfund transfers are generally made for the purpose of providing operational support to the receiving fund.  
The General Fund transfer of $16,864,360 to the Construction Fund represents funds required for building, 
maintenance, classroom equipment, and facility modifications. 
 
Note 5 – Long-term debt  
 
A. Long-term debt 
 
PWCS is a component unit of Prince William County.  As such, PWCS does not have the authority to issue 
long-term debt.  The County, therefore, issues any general obligation, VPSA, or Literary Fund debt that is 
required to fund capital improvements within PWCS.  PWCS initiates payments each year to defer the 
County’s cost of this debt.  Detail of general obligation, VPSA, and literary debt issued for PWCS can be 
found in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
 
B. Compensated absences 
 
Employees of PWCS are granted annual and sick leave based on their length of service, and may accrue 
compensatory leave for hours worked in excess of their scheduled hours. Unused annual and compensatory 
leave is payable to employees upon termination based on the employees' current rate of pay up to certain 
limits. 
 
The current portion of accrued compensated absences at June 30, 2007 is that amount of the liability that is 
expected to be paid within one year. The current and long-term portion of accrued compensated absences is 
included in long-term liabilities in the government-wide statement of net assets.  Liabilities for compensated 
absences are liquidated by the General Fund and the Food Services Fund. 
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PWCS' changes in liability for compensated absences are as follows: 
 

Compensated 
absences 

Beginning 
Balance

Ending 
Balance

Due Within  
One YearAdditions Reductions  

 

  

 $ 21,577,812 7,916,143  (6,436,368) 23,057,587 6,318,448 

 
Note 6 – Self-Insurance 
 
PWCS is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which PWCS carries commercial insurance. PWCS 
established a limited risk management program for workers' compensation. Premiums are paid into the 
Self-Insurance internal service fund by all other funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves, and 
administrative costs of the program.   
 
PWCS participates in a Consortium Group Health Insurance Program made up of employers who provide 
health insurance to their employees and dependents under one program.  Each participant in the program is 
separately rated and has separate accounting.  Anthem Blue Cross/Blue Shield is the plan administrator.  
Delta Dental Plan of Virginia, Inc. (Delta Dental) is the dental insurance carrier.  All full-time and part-time 
employees who are working at least 17½ hours per week are eligible to enroll in the health insurance 
program.  There are three (3) plans offered through the PWCS insurance program. An employee may 
choose either the HMO plan called “Healthkeepers Product 20”, or one of the two PPO plans offered, 
“KeyCare 15 Plus” or the  “KeyCare 20”.   All three plans include comprehensive medical, preventive care, 
vision, and prescription drug coverage.  The basis for estimating incurred but not reported claims at year-end 
is an annual analysis performed by the plan’s administrator.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 PWCS 
incurred $42,701,261 in self-insured health insurance claims. 
 
Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred, but not 
reported. The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends on 
many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards. Accordingly, 
claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends 
(including frequency and amount of payouts), and other economic and social factors. The estimate of the 
claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific claims 
and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated to specific claims. Estimated 
recoveries, for example from salvage or subrogation, are another component of the claims liability estimate.  
PWCS Self-Insurance, covering the risks of loss has $350,000 per occurrence retention for all lines of 
coverage and purchases excess insurance coverage which covers individual claims in excess with a 
$25,000,000 per occurrence and annual limit. There have been no significant reductions in insurance 
coverage in the prior year, and settlements have not exceeded coverage for each of the past three fiscal 
years. 
 
The following illustration presents a reconciliation of the changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the 
current and prior years. These claims liabilities are included in Long-term liabilities in the government-wide 
statement of net assets.  
 
Changes in aggregate liabilities for claims are as follows: 
  Health Insurance  Risk 

Management 

Unpaid Claims June 30, 2005 $       3,655,085 1,098,109 
Incurred Claims         37,432,459  780,144 
Claims Paid        (37,095,248)          (909,826) 
Unpaid Claims June 30, 2006          3,992,296           968,427 
Incurred Claims        42,701,261 1,932,504 
Claims Paid       (42,196,539)       (1,280,372) 
Unpaid Claims June 30, 2007 $       4,497,018          1,620,559   
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Unpaid claims and compensated absences reconcile to the statement of net assets as follows: 
 

  

Health 
Insurance 

Fund  

Self- 
Insurance 

Fund 

 
Compensated 

Absences  Total 
         
Due within one year  $4,497,018 692,212 6,318,448  11,507,678
Due in more than one year   - 928,347 16,739,139  17,667,486

Total $4,497,018 1,620,559 23,057,587  29,175,164
 
 
Note 7 - Capital assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows: 

 
  

 Balance   Balance 
 June 30,2006 Increases  Decreases  June 30, 2007 
Capital assets, not being depreciated:  
Land $ 38,517,132  15,475,837                     - 53,992,969 
Construction in Progress     41,136,118   55,494,921 (20,789,368)    75,841,671 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated     79,653,250   70,970,758      (    20,789,368)    129,834,640 
 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 762,230,803  20,239,078  (325,753) 782,144,128 
Library books 3,365,286 833,470 (647,744) 3,551,012 
Equipment 12,536,315 7,930,727 (127,111)  20,339,931 
Vehicles     62,032,456     3,550,653        (809,855)   64,773,254 
Total capital assets being depreciated   840,164,860 32,553,928      (1,910,463) 870,808,325 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 171,716,565 15,531,848   -   187,248,413 
Library books 1,941,717 710,203 (647,743) 2,004,177 
Equipment 5,258,762 1,136,636 (94,287)  6,301,111 
Vehicles     22,146,163 5,744,872   (784,529)   27,106,506 
Total accumulated depreciation   201,063,207    23,123,559   (1,526,559) 222,660,207 
 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net   639,101,653   648,148,118 
 
Capital assets, net $718,754,903   777,982,758 
 
 
 

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows: 
 
 

 

Instruction 
Regular $ 16,224,887 
Special  165,133 
Other  16,048 

Support Services 
General administration  103,160 
Student services  9,064 
Curricular/staff development  13,086 
Pupil transportation  5,965,151 
Operations  55,907 
Maintenance  55,313 
Central business services  493,488 
Food service  22,322 

Total depreciation expense $ 23,123,559 
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Note 8 - Contingent liabilities 
 
PWCS is contingently liable with respect to certain lawsuits, as well as other asserted and unasserted claims 
that have arisen in the course of its operations.  It is the opinion of the PWCS’ management and attorneys 
that any losses that may ultimately be incurred, as a result of these claims, will not be material. 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, 
may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed 
by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the government expects such amounts, if any, to 
be immaterial.  
 
Note 9 - Employee retirement systems and pension plans 
 
A. Virginia Retirement System    
 
Plan description: 
PWCS contributes to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), an agent and cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the VRS.  The system acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for political subdivisions in the Commonwealth of Virginia.  Benefit provisions and all 
other requirements are established by state statute.  Professional employees participate in a VRS statewide 
teacher cost sharing pool, and non-professional employees participate, as a separate group, in the agent 
multiple-employer retirement system. 
 
All full-time salaried permanent employees must participate in the VRS. Benefits vest after five years of 
service. Employees are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at age 65 with 5 years of service or  at 
age 50 with 30 years of service, payable monthly for life in an amount equal to 1.7 percent of their average 
final compensation (AFC) for each year of credited service. Benefits are actuarially reduced for retirees who 
retire prior to becoming eligible for full retirement benefits. In addition, retirees qualify for annual cost-of-living 
increases beginning (limited to 5% per year) in their second year of retirement. AFC is defined as the highest 
consecutive 36 months of reported compensation. The VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 
51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the 
General Assembly of Virginia. 
 
The VRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the VRS. A copy of that report may be obtained by writing VRS 
at PO Box 2500, Richmond, Virginia 23218-2500 or by download from their website at 
http://www.varetire.org. 
 
Funding policy and annual pension cost:   
Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950) to contribute 5% of their annual 
reported salary to the VRS. PWCS has assumed this member contribution for both the professional and non-
professional groups. Additionally, PWCS is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund 
its participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the Code of Virginia and approved by the 
VRS Board of Trustees. The non-professional contribution rate for the fiscal year ended 2007 was 13.17% of 
annual covered payroll. The professional, employer, and employee contributions to the VRS for the three 
years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $52,878,600, $39,420,849, and $38,674,044, respectively, 
and were equal to the required contributions for each year.  The contribution rates for the professional group 
were; 5% employee, 9.2% employer, 5% employee, 6.62% employer and, 5% employee, 6.03% employer, 
respectively for the years 2007, 2006, and 2005. 
 
The required contributions for PWCS (professional and non-professional) were determined as part of an 
actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2006, using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The 
actuarial assumptions included (a) a 7.50% investment rate of return, (b) projected salary increases that 
range between 3.75% and 5.60%, depending on the member's service and classification, and (c) 2.50% per 
year cost-of-living adjustments.  Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 2.50%. The actuarial 
value of PWCS' assets is equal to the modified market value of assets over a five-year period. The unfunded 
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actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis over 
a period of 20 years. 
 
Trend information: 
The following illustration summarizes the required three-year trend information for the PWCS  
non-professional agent multiple-employer retirement plan : 
 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 

Annual Pension Cost (APC) 
Percentage of 

APC Contributed 
Net Pension 

Obligation (NPO)Employer Portion Employee Portion 
paid by employer 

June 30, 2005 $      2,513,812 $       1,933,702 100% $          0 
June 30, 2006 2,787,017 2,143,859 100% 0 
June 30, 2007 3,789,941 2,319,425 100% 0 

 
B. Supplemental retirement 
 
PWCS also offers to all employees a tax deferred compensation plan (TDC).  PWCS contributes money on 
the eligible employee's behalf to purchase annuities after the employee has completed three (3) years of 
service with PWCS. The School Board's contribution increases each time an employee has completed five 
(5), ten (10), and fifteen (15) years of service.  At the end of the current year the cap on the employer 
contribution was $3,379 per employee.  The total employer contribution for fiscal year 2007 was $7,801,299.  
Substitutes and temporary employees who participate in the TDC plan are not eligible to receive the 
employer matching contribution. 
 
Note 10 - Postemployment benefits 
 
PWCS provides limited postretirement health and dental benefits, as provided for in Virginia state law, to 
retirees who have 15 or more years of creditable VRS service.  Retirees are granted the option to participate 
by paying 100% of their monthly health insurance premium to PWCS’ plan or to the carrier of their choice 
less a maximum credit of $75.  As of the end of the current fiscal year, there were 1,615 retirees receiving 
these benefits.  The plan is financed by payments from Prince William County Public Schools to the VRS.  
For fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the contribution made by PWCS was $1,992,147.  The surplus funds 
are not considered advance funded because PWCS, its employees, and retirees have no vested rights to 
access the excess funds.  GAAP do not require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in 
connection with an employer's obligation to provide these benefits. 
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A schedule of funding progress for the Virginia Retirement System is provided in the illustration below: 

 
Virginia Retirement System 

Schedule of Funding Progress for PWCS 
 

Actuarial 
Valuation Date 

June 30 

Actuarial 
Value of 

Assets (AVA) 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Liability (AAL) 

Unfunded 
Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(UAAL) 

Funded 
Ratio 

Covered 
Payroll 

UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 

2001 $ 63,165,383 $ 51,837,593 $(11,327,790) 121.9% $24,992,804 (45.32)%
2002 65,439,864 59,481,428 (5,958,436) 110.02% 28,150,039 (21.17)%
2003 67,150,184 67,302,413 152,229 99.77% 32,863,934 .46%
2004 68,955,014 76,461,317 7,506,303 90.18% 36,584,066 20.52%
2005 73,434,081 89,566,018 16,131,937 81.99% 40,599,997 39.73%
2006 80,602,356 94,242,745 13,640,389 85.53% 44,148,347 30.90%
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Other Governmental Funds 
 
 
 
Food Services Fund – The Food Services Fund is used to account for the operations of food 
service activities throughout the school division.  Revenues come primarily from sales of meals 
and through participation in the National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs.   
 
 
Facilities Use Fund – The Facilities Use Fund accounts for the use, by external organizations, of 
PWCS facilities.  The administrative cafeteria is also accounted for in this fund.   
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Prince William County Public Schools Schedule 1
Combining Balance Sheet
Other Governmental Funds - Special Revenue Funds
As of June 30, 2007

Food Services 
Fund

Facilities Use 
Fund

Total Other 
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS

Equity in cash and pooled investments 4,282,594$        1,684,534          5,967,128          
Accounts receivable 82,859               60,669               143,528             
Due from other governmental units 1,656,097          -                     1,656,097          
Inventory 1,103,566          -                     1,103,566          

Total assets 7,125,116$       1,745,203          8,870,319          

LIABILITIES and FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 321,559$           3,861                 325,420             
Salaries payable and withholdings 457,433             43,945               501,378             
Unearned revenue 860,080             -                     860,080             

Total liabilities 1,639,072          47,806               1,686,878          

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Inventory 1,103,566          -                     1,103,566          
Unreserved:

Designated for future years' expenditures 709,888             1,827                 711,715             
Designated for encumbrances 37,289               4,586                 41,875               
Undesignated 3,635,301          1,690,984          5,326,285          

Total fund balances 5,486,044          1,697,397          7,183,441          
Total liabilities and fund balances 7,125,116$       1,745,203          8,870,319          
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Prince William County Public Schools Schedule 2
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Other Governmental Funds - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Food Services 
Fund

Facilities Use 
Fund

Total Other 
Governmental 

Funds
REVENUES:
Use of money and property:

Use of money - interest 188,732$           79,963               268,695             
Use of property -                    885,913             885,913             

Charges for services 16,558,862        81,939               16,640,801        
Intergovernmental:

Federal 10,578,272        -                    10,578,272        
State 393,334             -                    393,334             

Miscellaneous 260,558             -                    260,558             
Total revenues 27,979,758        1,047,815          29,027,573        

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community service operations -                    698,424             698,424             
Food services 25,487,878        -                    25,487,878        

T t l dit 25 487 878 698 424 26 186 302Total expenditures 25,487,878      698,424            26,186,302       

Excess of revenues over expenditures 2,491,880          349,391             2,841,271          

Other Financing Uses:
Transfers out -                        (100,000)            (100,000)            

Net change in fund balances 2,491,880          249,391             2,741,271          

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 2,994,164          1,448,006          4,442,170          

FUND BALANCES, end of year 5,486,044$       1,697,397 7,183,441
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Prince William County Public Schools Schedule 3
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Food Services Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive/
(Negative)

REVENUES:
Use of money and property:

Use of money - interest 15,000$             15,000               188,732             173,732             
Charges for services 17,535,448        17,535,448        16,558,862        (976,586)            
Intergovernmental:

Federal 7,768,418          7,768,418          10,578,272        2,809,854          
State 363,475             363,475             393,334             29,859               

Miscellaneous 24,000               24,000               260,558             236,558             
Total revenues 25,706,341        25,706,341        27,979,758        2,273,417          

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Food services 25,799,398        25,820,919        25,487,878        333,041             
Total expenditures 25,799,398        25,820,919        25,487,878        333,041             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (93,057)              (114,578)            2,491,880          2,606,458          

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 2,994,164          2,994,164          2,994,164          -                        

FUND BALANCES, end of year 2,901,107$        2,879,586          5,486,044          2,606,458          

Original Budget Final Budget Actual
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Prince William County Public Schools Schedule 4
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Facilities Use Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive/
(Negative)

REVENUES:
Use of money and property:

Use of money - interest 15,000$             15,000               79,963               64,963               
Use of property 477,722             557,722             885,913             328,191             

Charges for services 85,443               85,443               81,939               (3,504)                
Total revenues 578,165             658,165             1,047,815          389,650             

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community service operations 602,884             678,298             698,424             (20,126)              
Total expenditures 602,884             678,298             698,424             (20,126)              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (24,719)              (20,133)              349,391             369,524             

Other Financing Uses:
Transfers out -                        (100,000)            (100,000)            -                        

Net change in fund balances (24,719)              (120,133)            249,391             (369,524)            

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 1,448,006          1,448,006          1,448,006          -                        

Original Budget Final Budget Actual

FUND BALANCES, end of year 1,423,287$        1,327,873 1,697,397 -                      
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Internal Service Funds 
 
 
 
Warehouse Fund – The Warehouse Fund is used to account for the operations of the 
warehouse.  Revenues and expenditures are predominantly a result of operations of the 
warehouse function.   
 
 
Self-Insurance Fund – The Self-Insurance Fund accounts for the self-insured workers 
compensation program.  Other insurance costs are also accounted for in this fund.  Revenues are 
derived from “premiums” charged to the other funds.  
 
 
Health Insurance Fund – PWCS is self-insured for health insurance.  This fund accounts for all 
claims payments.  Revenues are a result of employer contributions and employee payroll 
deductions. 
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Prince William County Public Schools Schedule 5
Combining Statement of  Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds
As of June 30, 2007

Warehouse 
Fund

Self-Insurance 
Fund

Health Insurance 
Fund

Total Internal 
Service Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:
  Equity in cash and pooled investments 28,521$           10,078,661         19,964,507          30,071,689       
  Accounts receivable and other current assets 1,890               69,547                112,665               184,102           
  Inventory 896,909           -                     -                      896,909           

Total current assets 927,320           10,148,208         20,077,172          31,152,700       

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 347,701           174,738              89,056                611,495           
  Salaries payable and withholdings -                   8,843                  508                     9,351               
  Unearned revenue -                   -                     4,273,700            4,273,700         
  Incurred but not reported claims -                   692,212              4,497,018            5,189,230         

Total  current liabilities 347,701           875,793              8,860,282            10,083,776       

Noncurrent liabilities:
  Incurred but not reported claims -                   928,347              -                      928,347           

Total liabilities 347,701           1,804,140           8,860,282            11,012,123       

NET ASSETS
  Unrestricted 579,619$          8,344,068           11,216,890          20,140,577       
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Prince William County Public Schools Schedule 6
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Warehouse 
Fund

Self-Insurance 
Fund

Health 
Insurance Fund

Total Internal 
Service Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services 4,416,794$    3,886,962         51,455,085        59,758,841         

Total operating revenues 4,416,794      3,886,962         51,455,085        59,758,841         

Operating Expenses:
Personnel services -                 539,742           493,946             1,033,688           
Materials/supplies -                 111,269           23,779               135,048              
Administrative costs -                 -                   3,556,988          3,556,988           
Premiums -                 1,706,165         3,157,968          4,864,133           
Claims and benefits paid -                 -                   42,701,261        42,701,261         
Losses and unallocated loss adjustment -                 1,932,504         -                     1,932,504           
Cost of goods sold 4,428,898      -                   -                     4,428,898           

Total operating expenses 4,428,898      4,289,680         49,933,942        58,652,520         

Operating income (loss) (12,104)          (402,718)          1,521,143          1,106,321           

Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest and miscellaneous 627                567,492           947,388             1,515,507           

      Income (loss) before transfers (11,477)          164,774           2,468,531          2,621,828           

Transfers out -                 (100,000)          -                     (100,000)             

Change in net assets (11,477)          64,774             2,468,531          2,521,828           

Net Assets, beginning of year 591,096         8,279,294         8,748,359          17,618,749         

Net Assets, end of year 579,619$       8,344,068         11,216,890        20,140,577         
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Prince William County Public Schools Schedule 7
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Warehouse 
Fund

Self-Insurance 
Fund

Health 
Insurance Fund

Total Internal 
Service Funds

Receipts from customers and users 4,416,674$      3,888,524        51,873,538        60,178,736      
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (4,277,378)       (2,989,627)       (48,846,244)       (56,113,249)     
Payments to employees -                   (544,328)          (493,438)            (1,037,766)       
Net cash provided by operating activities 139,296           354,569           2,533,856          3,027,721        

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Transfers to other funds (111,664)          (100,000)          -                     (211,664)          

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received from investments 867                  546,446           910,129             1,457,442        

Net increase in equity in cash and pooled investments  28,499             801,015           3,443,985          4,273,499        

Equity in cash and pooled investments, beginning of year 22                    9,277,646        16,520,522        25,798,190      

Equity in cash and pooled investments, end of year 28,521$           10,078,661      19,964,507        30,071,689      

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) (12,104)$          (402,718)          1,521,143          1,106,321        

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by operating activities

   Change in assets and liabilities:
     (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (120)                 1,562               181,469             182,911           
     Decrease in inventories 142,169           -                   -                     142,169           
     Increase in unearned revenue -                   -                   236,984             236,984           
     Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,351               108,179           89,030               206,560           
     Increase (decrease) in salaries payable and withholdings -                   (4,586)              508                    (4,078)              
     Increase in incurred, but not reported claims -                   652,132           504,722             1,156,854        
Net cash provided by operating activities 139,296$         354,569           2,533,856          3,027,721        
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Fiduciary Funds 
 
 
 
Regional School Fund – The Regional School Fund was established in 1996 and participants 
include Prince William County, Manassas, and Manassas Park.  PWCS holds the funds for this 
Program and is responsible for the receipt and disbursement of said funds. 
 
 
Student Activity Fund – The Student Activity Fund accounts for independent activity funds held 
by elementary and secondary schools for student groups by PWCS. 
 

69



Prince William County Public Schools Schedule 8
Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
As of June 30, 2007

Regional School 
Fund

Student Activity 
Fund

Total Agency 
Funds

Assets
Cash and pooled investments 2,124,855$           5,287,848             7,412,703             
Due from other governmental units 2,142,771             -                        2,142,771             
Total assets 4,267,626$           5,287,848             9,555,474             

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,267,626$           5,287,848             9,555,474             
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Prince William County Public Schools Schedule 9
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Balance Balance
June 30, 2006 Additions Deductions June 30, 2007

Regional School Fund

Assets
Cash and pooled investments 2,738,710$       24,376,948       24,990,803       2,124,855         
Due from other governmental units 1,848,457         2,142,771         1,848,457         2,142,771         
Total assets 4,587,167$       26,519,719       26,839,260       4,267,626         

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,587,167$       26,519,719       26,839,260       4,267,626         

Student Activity Fund

Assets
Cash and pooled investments 5,241,789$       12,380,244       12,334,185       5,287,848         
Total assets 5,241,789$       12,380,244       12,334,185       5,287,848         

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,241,789$       12,380,244       12,334,185       5,287,848         

Total Agency Funds

Assets
Cash and pooled investments 7,980,499$       36,757,192       37,324,988       7,412,703         
Due from other governmental units 1,848,457         2,142,771         1,848,457         2,142,771         
Total assets 9,828,956$       38,899,963       39,173,445       9,555,474         

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,828,956$       38,899,963       39,173,445       9,555,474         
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